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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Members

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty Nineth Annual Report together with Audited
Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

1. EINANCIAL RESULTS

The Financial Results of the Company for the year 2020-21 are summarized as under:
(Amountin Rs.)

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars (2020-2021) (2019-2020)
Total Revenue 43,29,95,846 43,75,56,954
Profit before Interest, Depreciation & Tax 2,74,54,836 2,18,00,618
Less: Interest - -
Less: Depreciation 74,67,897 72,85,344
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax 1,99,86,939 1,45,15,274
Less: Tax Expenses

1. Current Tax (Earlier year's tax adjustment) 23,45,792 60,25,195

2. Deferred Tax - -
Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax 1,76,41,147 84,90,079

Add: Amount brought forward from Last Year

(69,19,55,437)

(70,04,45,516)

Appropriations:

Proposed Dividend

Tax on Proposed Dividend

Transfer to General Reserve

Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet

(67,43,14,290)

(69,19,55,437)

2. SHARE CAPITAL

The issued and paid up share capital of the Company as on March 31, 2021 is Rs. 949,440,640/- divided

into 94,944,064 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.

3. DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year 2020-21 with a view to consolidate the

resources of the Company.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the financial year under review, no amount was transferred to reserves.
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5. THE STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND THE ECONOMIC SCENARIO

Members are aware, Bank of Baroda (“BOB”) and BNP Paribas Asset Management Asia Ltd (“BNP
Asia”) had signed agreements in October 2019 to merge their Asset Management and Trustee
Companies in India. As a result of amalgamation, BNP Paribas Asset Management India Pvt. Ltd.
(“BNPP AMC”) will be the surviving AMC and Baroda Trustee India Pvt. Ltd. (“Baroda Trustee”) will be
the surviving Trustee Company. Both the surviving AMC and Trustee Companies will be held by BOB
and BNP Asia and both, BOB and BNP Asia will be classified as sponsors. In case of the AMC, the
shareholding will be 50.1% and 49.9% respectively for BOB and BNP Asia, while it will be 50.7% and
49.3% in case of Baroda Trustee. The merger is subject to necessary regulatory approvals.

The appointed date for merger is April 1, 2019. The merger was expected initially to be completed in FY
2020-21. However, the same has been delayed in view of certain regulatory approvals which are
awaited. One of such approval requirements was introduced by the Government in 2020-21 itself, by
way of Press Note 3, regarding FDI. This primarily applies to the Trustee Company, which will issue
share to BNPP Asia. The merger is now expected to be completed in FY 2021-22 subject to receipt of
pending approvals. The NCLT approved the scheme of amalgamation on February 12, 2021. As per the
order, Petitioner Companies are required to lodge certified copy of the order within 75 days of the receipt
of last of the approvals — FDI / SEBI / RBI. The effective date will be determined based on the integration
completion and regulatory clearance.

The average AUM during the year was lower than the previous year, primarily on account of lower flows
in fixed income and liquid category in the first two quarters of the year. Issues around credit impacted
the investor sentiment while the lower returns led to lower flows generally. However, the equity AUM
grew, with its AAUM rising to 37% in the asset mix during the last quarter of FY 2020-21. During the
year, Baroda Mutual Fund launched two new funds - Baroda Large and Mid-Cap Fund (an Equity Fund)
and Baroda Banking and PSU Bond Fund. Both these funds collected over INR 500 crores during the
NFO period. The investment performance across most funds continued to remain stable, with an uptick
in the relative performance of equity funds.

While BOB continued to be a significant Distribution Partner, the company continued to expand its
distribution presence through empaneling new Distributors, primarily, IFAs. The combined branch
strength of the BOB post-merger of Vijaya and Dena Bank, offers a wide geographical reach for the
company to expand its business. Similarly, the investors will have an expanded product offering once
the merger is concluded.

While your Company made a quick transition to Work from Home in March 2020, consequent to onset
of the Covid 19 Pandemic and announcement of lock down, the prolonged period of impact was begun
to be felt as cases peaked in the country over the next several months, something which was not
anticipated. For most part of the year, the employees continued to work from home, with a small
percentage of attendance in office, consequent to changes in announcements made by the Central and
State Governments from time to time. Your Company followed all the protocols for the safety of its
employees. The business operations continued uninterrupted though. SEBI made it convenient to the
Industry by providing certain relaxations and extending dates for certain compliances. The service
deliverables to the clients and their transactions were largely through the digital modes for most part of
the year. The company also created few additional facilities in this direction.

The country is now in the grip of second wave, with the reported cases on a daily basis, being the highest
in the world. India started vaccinating its citizens in phases from January 2021. Your Company continues
to follow safety protocols, advising its employees to get inoculated as eligible. Your company is also
coordinating with Bank and group entities to explore extending facilities to employees.

Customer deliverables remain a focal point of our business, by providing good investment products
backed with competitive performance and quality service. Continued focus on growth and investment
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performance across the product range, whilst maintaining cost discipline will continue to remain key
focus area for the Company.

Economic scenario & outlook

India’s GDP growth for FY21 is estimated to decline by 8% (according to First advance estimate released
by CSO), hit by the global pandemic and the lockdowns announced & extended periodically by the
Government during the year. The Global Economy shrunk by 3.3% in 2020. Factors like loss of income
for many, supply side challenges for industries, restrictions on movement of people etc. has led to sharp
fall in private consumption, while Government had to continue spending towards Covid 19 relief
packages. The fiscal deficit is expected to be 9.5% of the GDP for the FY 2020-21

The stock markets which had a new low in the last week of March 2020, rebounded sharply during the
year. The BSE Sensex returned 68% absolute on a 12M period ending March 31st, 2021. The BSE mid
cap on the other hand delivered a return of 100% over the same period, while Small cap index returns
were over 115%. Sectors like Metal, Power, Realty, Auto, Technology, Capital goods were
outperformers during the year. Flls were net buyers during the year to the tune of INR 2.60 lac crores.
Experts believe that these inflows were driven due to macro-economic indicators looking strong, high
corporate earnings, ample global liquidity & increase in the weight of India in the emerging market MSCI
index.

As regards Bond Markets, the G-sec 10-year yields remained below 6% on average in FY21. The Repo
rate was reduced by RBI to 4% and reverse repo to 3.35% in the first quarter. To boost the Atma Nirmbar
Bharat agenda, further stimulus was provided by the Government. However, in the last quarter, the RBI
announced start of gradual restoration of normal liquidity operations.

Given the unprecedented impact of global pandemic which had led to economic slowdown, it was
challenging task for the Government to revive the economy. For India to become a truly Atma Nirbhar
Bharat and to get the tag of fastest growing economy, an unwavering commitment was required from all
quarters, in the backdrop of fast changing socio-economic environment.

The Union Budget was stated to be built on six pillars (i) Health and Wellbeing (ii) Physical and Financial
Capital, and Infrastructure (iii) Inclusive Development for Aspirational India (iv) Reinvigorating Human
Capital (v) Innovation and Research and Development (vi) Minimum Government and Maximum
Governance. The intent was to develop a robust infrastructure, boost investor confidence, provide good
governance and facilitate ease of doing business.

The growth forecast for the economy for FY 2021-22 was retained by RBI at 10.5%, while IMF had
predicted a growth of 12.5% (April 2021 released data), owing to robust growth in consumption,
investment and lower base effect. Momentum was expected to continue in certain sectors owing to
significant shift in consumption patterns caused by the Pandemic. The fiscal deficit was rise to 9.5% of
the GDP for FY 2020-21, while for FY 2021-22, it is being targeted at 6.8% of the GDP. The RBI
continues with its accommodative monetary policy stance. However, the second wave of Covid 19
Pandemic in India has taken everyone by surprise. With re-imposition of lockdowns, the slowdown is
already being witnessed in certain sectors. This could delay the economic revival and the projected
growth rates are already being moderated to under 10% by various agencies for FY 2021-22.

The Indian MF Industry continued with its growth Agenda. The average AUM of the Industry for the Jan
to March 2021 quarter was over INR 32 lakh crores, up by 19% over the AAUM number for the same
period last year. The Industry’s continued digital transformation meant that convenience to transact for
investors was ensured. Flows from B30 towns continued, predominantly into equity funds. As of March
2021, the contribution of B30 towns to Industry’s AUM was over 15%, having growth by 26% over same
period last year. The number of folios stood at 9.79 crores as at the year end. During the year, there
were series of regulatory changes to enhance compliance standards, transparency and create a
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stronger framework. The Industry has set for itself, an ambitious growth target over the next decade.
Your Company with the backing of strong and reputed brand and its reach, is well positioned to be part
of this exciting growth journey. Once the proposed merger with BNP Paribas Asset Management is
completed, it will further aid in terms of global asset management expertise, broader product range and
wider distribution network.

(Source : Multiple sources such as Bloomberg, news reports, articles, etc.)
6. DIRECTORS:

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, the following changes took place in the composition of
the Board of Directors of the Company:

1. Mr. Rajneesh Sharma was appointed as the Non-Executive (Associate) Director of the Company
by the members at the 28" Annual General Meeting (28" AGM”).

2. Mr. Nagesh Alai was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a period of 5
(five) years w.e.f. November 12,2019.

3. Mr. Anthony Heredia was re-appointed as the Whole time Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company for a period commencing from August 03, 2020 until February 02, 2021, or the
previous day of closing date of the merger transaction* by the Board of Directors in their meeting
held on July 28, 2020 and by the members at the 28th AGM of the Company held on September
25, 2020. Mr. Heredia was re-appointed as the Whole time Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company for a further period commencing from February 03, 2021 upto August 02, 2021
or the previous day of closing date of the merger transaction*, whichever would be earlier, by
the Board of Directors in their meeting held on January 22, 2021.

*Scheme of amalgamation of Baroda Asset Management India Limited with BNP Paribas Asset
Management India Private Limited and BNP Paribas Trustee India Private Limited with Baroda Trustee
India Private Limited and their respective shareholders.

As on date of this report, the Board of Directors of the Company comprises of the following directors:

Name of Directors Designation

Mr. Vikramaditya Singh Khichi Non-Executive (Associate) Director
(DIN:08317894)

Mr. Rajneesh Sharma Non-Executive (Associate) Director
(DIN: 07170440)

Mr. Anthony Heredia Chief Executive Officer & Whole Time Director
(DIN :02205628)

Mr. M. P. Mehrotra Independent Director

(DIN :00016768)

Mr. Sethuram lyer Neelakantan | Independent Director

(DIN : 05253455)

Mr. Nagesh Alai Independent Director

(DIN :01290616)

Mr. Rajneesh Sharma, Non-Executive (Associate) Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the
ensuing 29" Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment.
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7. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the financial year, 6 (six) meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company were convened and
held viz. on May 08, 2020, July 28, 2020, August 27, 2020, September 28, 2020, November 27, 2020,
and January 22, 2021. The intervening gap between the Board meetings was not exceeding the period
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the Secretarial Standard on Board Meetings
(“SS-17) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and as permitted by various circulars
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs in that regard due to the COVID -19 pandemic.

The status of attendance of Directors at these Board Meetings is as follows:

Number of Meetings during
Name Designation DIN the FY 2020-2021
Held Attended

Mr. Vikramaditya Singh | Non-Executive (Associate) | 08317894 6 5
Khichi Director
Mr. Rajneesh Sharma Non-Executive  (Associate) | 07170440 6 4

Director
Mr. Anthony Heredia Whole-Time Director (WTD) 02205628 6 6

& Chief Executive Officer

(CEQO)
Mr. M. P. Mehrotra Independent Director 00016768 6 6
Mr. Sethuram lyer | Independent Director 05253455 6 6
Neelakantan
Mr. Nagesh Alai Independent Director 01290616 6 6

8. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (5) read with Section 134(3) (c) of the Act, the Directors
hereby confirm that-

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures from
the same;

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and of the profit of the Company for
the said period,;

the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

There are proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were
devised and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

A.

B.

All the Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act.

The Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company hold high standards
of integrity and possess requisite expertise and experience required to fulfill their duties as
Independent Directors.

In terms of Section 150 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time,
Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they have registered themselves
with the databank maintained by The Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, Manesar (‘lICA’).The
Independent Directors are also required to undertake online proficiency self-assessment test
conducted by the IICA within a period of 2 (two) years from the date of inclusion of their names
in the data bank, unless they meet the criteria specified for exemption. Based on the exemption
criteria specified, Mr. Mehrotra and Mr. Alai, are exempted from the requirement to undertake
the online proficiency test. Mr. Sethuram lyer has undertaken and cleared the online proficiency
self-assessment test.

10. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Board of

Directors under the provisions of the Act and has framed a Nomination and Remuneration Policy to inter

alia ensure that:

1. Level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully.

2. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks.

3. Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP"), and senior management of the
Company involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay, taking into account the Company’s
goals, objectives and performance.

Further,

the Company is not required to constitute a Stakeholders Relationship Committee since there

are less than one thousand security holders.

As on date of this report, the NRC comprises of the following members:

Name of Members Designation

Mr. Vikramaditya Singh Khichi Non-Executive (Associate) Director
Mr. M. P. Mehrotra Independent Director

Mr. Sethuram lyer Neelakantan Independent Director

Mr. Nagesh Alai Independent Director

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, 4 (four) meetings of the NRC were held on May 08,
2020, June 10, 2020, July 28, 2020, and January 22, 2021. The status of attendance of the NRC
members at these meetings were as follows:

Number of Meeting during FY
Name of Members Designation 2020-21
Held Attended
Mr.  Vikramaditya Singh Non-Executive (Associate) 4 4
Khichi Director
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Number of Meeting during FY
Name of Members Designation 2020-21
Held Attended
Mr. Sethuram lyer Independent Director 4 4
Neelakantan
Mr. M. P. Mehrotra Independent Director 4 4
Mr. Nagesh Alai Independent Director 4 4

11. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition of Audit Committee of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of Section 177 of
the Act and Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and as on date
consists of three independent directors.

As on date of this report, the Audit Committee of the Company comprises of the following members:

Name of Members Desighation

Mr. M. P. Mehrotra Independent Director
Mr. Sethuram lyer Neelakantan | Independent Director
Mr. Nagesh Alai Independent Director

The Audit Committee met at least once in each quarter. During the Financial Year 2020-21, 5 (Five) Audit
Committee Meetings were held on May 08, 2020, July 28, 2020, August 27, 2020, November 27, 2020,
and January 22, 2021 respectively.

The status of attendance of the members of the Committee in the above meetings is as follows:

Number of Meetings during

Name of Members Designation FY 2020-21
Held Attended
Mr. M. P. Mehrotra Independent Director 5 5
Mr. Sethuram lyer Independent Director 5 5

Neelakantan

Mr. Nagesh Alai Independent Director 5 5

12. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has constituted a Risk and Compliance Committee (“RCC”) as on date comprising of
one director of the Company and one member from the management team of the Company. The
Committee meets at least four times in a year. The Committee oversees the Internal Control System
and further has oversight for the identification, assessment, monitoring and control of investment,
compliance, and operational risks to ensure that risk management complies with applicable legal and
regulatory requirements and that the mechanisms, which have been implemented, operate correctly.
The Company has framed a Risk Management Policy to institute a set of guidelines that reflect regulatory
requirements and other risk management practices.

13. POLICY ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The Company is not required to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, as it does not
fall within purview of Section 135(1) of the Act.
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14, ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM, IF APPLICABLE

The Company does not fall under the purview of section 177(9) of the Act read along with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and hence, is not required to establish any
vigil mechanism.

However, pursuant to the change in shareholding of the Company effective September 28, 2018, the
Company has become a wholly owned subsidiary of BOB, which is an entity owned by the Central
Government and by the virtue of provisions of section 2 (45) of the Act, the Company is now categorized
as a Government Company. As such, the provisions of vigilance mechanism applicable to BOB and its
subsidiaries have been adopted by the Company in the form of Vigilance Policy duly approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

15. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE BY THE BOARD

The Independent Directors of the Company had, in their meeting held on March 18, 2021, evaluated the
performance of the Non-Independent Directors of the Company based on the criteria such as
performance of duties, obligations, governance, etc. and the Board as a whole. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company carried out the evaluation of the
performance of the individual directors, the Board as a whole and the committees, as applicable.
Feedback was sought by way of a structured questionnaire covering various related aspects.

16. STATUTORY AUDITORS

During the year under review, M/s. Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP., Chartered Accountants bearing
registration number 105146W/W100621, were appointed as the statutory auditors of the Company by
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India vide their letter dated August 10, 2020, for conducting the
statutory audit of the accounts of the Company for the financial year 2020-21.

17. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act, and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board had appointed M/s. MC & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2021. The secretarial audit report in Form MR-3 is enclosed herewith as Annexure-I to this
report.

18. EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS
OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMER IN AUDITOR’S REPORT AND SECRETARIAL
AUDIT REPORT& FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITORS U/S 143(12) OF THE ACT

There are no qualification or adverse remarks or disclaimer in the audit reports issued by the statutory
auditors nor were any frauds reported by them. Further, there are no adverse remarks in the audit reports
issued by the secretarial auditors of the Company.

19. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has in place proper and adequate internal control systems commensurate with the nature
of its business, and size of its operations. The statutory auditors of the Company have found no
weakness in the internal control system of the Company and have mentioned the same in their audit
report for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Baroda Asset Management India Limited
(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Co. Ltd.)

CIN : U65991MH1992PLC069414

501, Titanium, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400063

B: +91 22 6848 1000 / 4219 7999 F: +91 22 6848 1001 aro a
E: info@barodamf.com W: www.barodamf.com

MUTUAL FUND



Baroda Mutual Fund

20. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

During the year under review, pursuant to the Scheme of amalgamation under which it is proposed to
merge the Company with and into BNP Paribas AMC & merger of BNP Paribas Trustee India Pvt Ltd
with and into Baroda Trustee India Pvt Ltd., approval of NCLT was received on February 12, 2021.

As per the NCLT order, Petitioner Companies i.e. the Company and BNP Paribas Trustee India Pvt.
Limited are required to file certified copy of the order within 75 days from the receipt of the other
regulatory approvals.

21. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related party transaction(s) entered during the year were in the ordinary course of business and on
arm’s length basis. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section
188 (1) of the Act are mentioned in Form AOC-2 pursuant to provisions of Section 134 (3)(h) of the Act
and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, which is enclosed herewith as Annexure - I
to this Board Report.

Details of the contracts / arrangements / transactions with related parties are mentioned in note 22.1
(Related party disclosures) to the financial statements forming part of the Annual Report.

22. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there were no changes in nature of business of the Company.

23. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

There were no loans or guarantees given, or security provided, under section 186 of the Act during the
year.

The details of investments made by the Company during the year are provided in notes 11 and 13 to
the financial statements forming part of the Annual Report.

24. DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public or members of the Company, during the
financial year 2020-21, within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act read with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. Further, the Company has also not accepted any funds from the
Director(s) of the Company during the financial year under review.

25. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

A. Conservation of Energy& technology absorption

The operations of your Company are not energy-intensive. However, adequate measures are taken for
conservation of energy. As part of technology absorption, the Company has initiated measures to
increase digitization and has plans to increase use of technology for its service deliverables.

B. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo:

The details of Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo during the financial under review are as follows:
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e Foreign Exchange Earnings: Nil
e Foreign Exchange Outgo: Rs. 191,525/-

26. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS/COURTS/TRIBUNAL

There are no orders passed by any regulator, courts, or tribunals, against the Company during the
financial year 2020-21.

27. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

In terms of Act, the Company does not have any subsidiary or associate company/ies and further it has
not entered into any joint venture during the financial year 2020-21.

28. SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE

Pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013, the Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee comprising of senior officials
and an external member of an NGO. The Committee meets at least once on a quarterly basis and has
formulated a policy on prevention of sexual harassment of women at the workplace. There was no case
of sexual harassment reported during the year ended March 31,2021.

29. ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, and Rule 12 (1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return as on March 31, 2021,
is available on the Company’s website www.barodamf.com

30. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, the following changes took place in the Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company:

e Ms. Farhana Mansoor, ceased to be the Head — Compliance and Company Secretary of the
Company w.e.f. close of business hours of January 29, 2021.

e Ms. Pooja Bagadia was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. February 01,
2021

As on the date of this report, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company comprises of the following:
e Mr. Anthony Heredia — Chief Executive Officer and Whole Time Director
e Mr. Kiran Deshpande — Chief Operating Officer & Chief Financial Officer

e Ms. Pooja Bagadia — Senior Officer — Compliance and Company Secretary

31. RECEIPT OF REMUNERATION OR COMMISSION FROM HOLDING COMPANY OR
SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

No remuneration or commission was received by the Whole Time Director from the Holding/Subsidiary
Company.

Baroda Asset Management India Limited
(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Co. Ltd.)
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32. EMPLOYEES

The statement containing particulars of top ten employees in terms of remuneration and the particulars
of employees as required under section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in a separate
annexure and forms part of this report. Further, the report and accounts are being sent to members
excluding the said annexure. In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the said annexure is open for inspection
at the registered office of the Company. Any member interested in obtaining a copy of the annexure may
write to the Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company.

33. COMPLIANCES OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable secretarial standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on Meeting of Board of Directors and General
Meetings.

34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board places on record its appreciation of the wholehearted and sincere co-operation received by
the Company during the year from the employees, customers/clients, bankers and various Government
authorities at all levels.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR BARODA ASSET MANAGEMENT INDIA LTD.

VIKRAMADITYA SINGH KHICHI ANTHONY HEREDIA
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CEO & WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR
DIN:08317894 DIN:02205628

DATE : June 24, 2021

PLACE: Mumbai
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Annexure -1

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

BARODA ASSET MANAGEMENT INDIA LIMITED

(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by BARODA ASSET MANAGEMENT INDIA LIMITED
(formerly known as BARODA PIONEER ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED)
hereinafter called “The Company”. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the year ended on
March 31, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined on test check basis the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021 according to the
provisions of:

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the

extent of Foreign Direct Investment Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board

of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act’):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; -Not Applicable
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992/2015 and as amended from time to time;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; -Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; -Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; -Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; -Not
Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009;
and -Not Applicable

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; -Not
Applicable

vi.  Other laws as may be applicable specifically to the company are annexed as Annexure I

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

ii.

Secretarial Standard 1 and Secretarial Standard 2 issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India vide its notification no. 1 (SS) dated April 23, 2015, effective from July 1,
2015 and revised from time to time.

The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange with
respect to units Baroda Mutual Fund, managed by BARODA ASSET MANAGEMENT
INDIA LIMITED.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of

the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in

compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes

on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining

further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful

participation at the meeting.
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Decisions are carried through majority consent, while the dissenting members’ views, if any are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

There were no instances where any Board Member dissented to the agenda matters that were
presented. All matters were approved unanimously.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the company had specific events/actions which are
attached to the report as Annexure II.

For MC & Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Miten Chawda
FCS No: 6949
C P No: 11625

UDIN: FO06949C000388792
Generated as on May 28, 2021

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 24,2021
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Annexure I
List of other laws applicable to the Company
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("'SCRA”)
Association of Mutual Funds in India’s guidelines, circulars & directives
Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002
The Depositories Act, 1996 and relevant Stock Exchange Regulations
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and other rules, regulations and guidelines prescribed by RBI
Income Tax Act, 1961 and Indirect Tax Laws (Including Securities Transaction Tax)
Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA)
Profession Tax Act (corporate and as applicable to branches)
Maharashtra Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1953
The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976
The Employment Exchanges (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959
The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961
Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
The Bombay Shops and Establishment Act, 1948
The Information Technology Act, 2000
The Emblems and Names (Prevention of Improper Use) Act, 1950
Income Tax Act, 1961
Service Tax Act/Rules/Regulations
The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948
The Bombay Stamp Act, 1958
Indian Stamp Act, 1899
Indian Registration Act, 1908
Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881
Employees Compensation Act, 1923
The Payment of Wages Act, 1936
Trade Marks Act, 1999
Indian Copyright Act, 1957
Indian Contract Act, 1872
Competition Act, 2002
The Subsistence Allowance Act, 1981
The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 with (Central) Rules 1950
The Bombay Labour Welfare Fund Act 1953
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Annexure I1

List of Specific Events
Board of Directors
Sr. Approval Members
R k
No. cmaris date/Noting date/ | Approval date
Circular resolution
1 Regularizaﬁon of the appointmen’F of Mr. July 28, 2020 September 25,
Rajneesh Sharma and Mr. Nagesh Alai 2020
Re-'apl‘:)ointment .Of Mr. Vikra'maditya Sir‘lgh September 25,
2. Khichi, who retires by rotation and being | July 28, 2020 2020
eligible offers himself for re-appointment
Approving remuneration of Mr. Anthony
Heredia, Whole Time Director and Chief
. . . September 25,
3. Executive Officer of the Company for period : July 28, 2020 2020
1. 2019-20 and
2. April 1, 2020, to August 2, 2020
Approving re-appointment of Mr. Anthony
Heredia as Whole Time Director and Chief
Executive. Officer of the Company for period September 25,
4. commencing from August 3, 2020 to February | July 28, 2020 2020
2, 2021 or upto previous day of the closing date
of the merger transaction* whichever would be
earlier.
Considering and noting the appointment of
M/s. Kunverji Khimji & Co. LLP, CA, as the
Stat Auditors of the Company for the period
5. A t 27,2020 NA
April 01,2020 to March 31, 2021, as| oo
recommended by Comptroller and Auditor
General
Resi i f Ms. Farh h
6. esignation of Ms. Farhana Mansoor as the January 22, 2021 NA
Company Secretary of the Company
Appoi f . Pooja B i h
- ppointment of Ms. Pooja Bagadia as the January 22, 2021 NA
Company Secretary of the Company.
Approving re-appointment of Mr. Anthony
Heredia as Whole Time Director and Chief .
. . . As informed, same
Executive Officer of the Company for period i :
_ will be considered
commencing from February 3, 2021, to August .
8. . . January 22, 2021 at the ensuing
2, 2021 or upto previous day of the closing date
. . Annual  general
of the merger transaction* whichever would be .
Meeting

earlier.
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*Scheme of amalgamation of Baroda Asset Management India Limited with BNP Paribas Asset
Management India Private Limited and BNP Paribas Trustee India Private Limited with Baroda
Trustee India Private Limited and their respective shareholders.

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure III and forms an
integral part of this report.
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Company Secretaries

Annexure III

The Board of Directors,
Baroda Asset Management India Limited

501, Titanium, 5th Floor Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E)
Mumbai MH 400063.

Dear Sirs,

The Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2021, report of even date is to be read

along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that
the processes and practices that we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

Thanking you.

Yours faithfully,

For MC & Associates

Practicing Company Secretaries

Miten Chawda
FCS No: 6949
C P No: 11625
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Annexure Il

Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of or or ions not at arm’s length basis (Amount in Rs.)

Nature of Duration of Salient terms of the contracts or Justification for entering into Date on which the special resolution was
Sr. Nature of the C / C / ar or i including such contracts or arrangements |Date of approval by |Amount paid as |passed in general meeting as required
No. |Name of the Related Party |relationship t/transactions t/transactions the value, if any or transactions the Board advances, if any |under first proviso to section 188

Nil

2. Details of material contracts or or i at arm’s length basis for the Financial Year 2020-21 (Amount in Rs.)

Nature of Duration of Salient terms of the contracts or
sr. Nature of the Contract/ar Contract/ar or ions including | Date of approval by the Board, if |Amount paid as
No. |Name of the Related Party ionshi t/ i t/ i the value, if any any, ad if any
1 Bank of Baroda Holding Company Payment of License |3 years Use of Logo and /or name of Bank of May 08,2020 500000*

fees to Holding Baroda under license

Companv

* Plus applicable taxes
Note : Bank charges amounting to Rs. 2350 were paid to Bank of Baroda during FY 2020-2021 under the ordinary regular course of business . The same is also disclosed in the notes to accounts to the accounts to the financial statements of the Company for the year 2020-2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Baroda Asset Management India Ltd.

Place : Mumbai Vikramaditya Singh Khichi Anthony Heredia
Non-Executive Director CEO & Whole-Time Director
Date : June 24, 2021 (DIN:08317894 ) (DIN: 02205628 )

Baroda Asset Management India Limited

(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Co. Ltd.)

CIN : U65991MH1992PLC069414

501, Titanium, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400063
B: +91 22 6848 1000 / 4219 7999 F: +91 22 6848 1001
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INDIAN AUDIT AND ACCOUNTS DEPARTMENT
OFFICE OF THE PRINCIPAL DIRECTOR OF AUDIT
(SHIPPING), MUMBAL.
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Chief Executive Officer
Baroda Asset Management India Limited
501, Titanium, Western Express Highway,

Goregaon (East)
Mumbai 400 063.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF
INDIA UNDER SECTION 143 (6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BARODA ASSET MANAGEMENT INDIA
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

The preparation of financial statements of Baroda Asset Management India
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the
management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India under section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for
expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section
143 (10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 26 April 2021.

The assets under management through various schemes managed by Baroda
Asset Management India Limited are not reflected in its Balance Sheet, since these
assets do not form part of the Baroda Asset Management India Limited. Therefore, I
do not look into operation of these schemes including decision making regarding
acquisition, management and disposal of the assets managed by the Baroda Asset
Management India Limited and express no opinion on the soundness of the investments.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have decided not
to conduct the supplementary audit of the financial statements of Baroda Asset
Management India Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021 under section 143 (6)(a)
of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

n.
M. Lﬁ”@w\*w\“‘

(P. V. Hari Krishna)
Principal Director of Audit (Shipping), Mumbai

Place : Mumbai
Date : 02.07.2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To:

The Members of

Baroda Asset Management India Limited

(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the financial statements of Baroda Asset Management India Limited (Formerly known
as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited) (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at 31st March 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information. In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31° March, 2021, and its profit and cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

2.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder; and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. Emphasis of Matter

3.1 We draw attention to Note 21 of the financial statements which describes the details and status of
Composite Scheme of Amalgamation (‘the Scheme’), which is approved by Hon’ble NCLT on February 12,
2021 but financial effect whereof is yet to be given pending regulatory approvals and the basis of
preparation of these financial statements on a going concern basis. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.

3.2 We draw attention to Note 23 of the financial statements which provides views of the Company’s
management on impacts of COVID-19 Pandemic, based on its assessment, on the financial statements as

——

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Eiphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
T:+ 91 22 61437333 E: info@kke.in W: www.kke.in

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001, India
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Responsibility of Management for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

B

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements. Our audit process in accordance with the SAs is narrated in detail in
Annexure 1 to this report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

6.

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
T+ 91 22 61437333 E: info@kke.in W: www.kke.in

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information, comprising
of the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including
Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and such other
disclosures related Information, excluding the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon (‘Other
Information’). In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the other Information and if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to
those charges with governance as required under SA 720 'The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to other
Information'.
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7. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

Other Matter

8. The entire audit finalization process was carried from remote locations i.e. other than the office of the

Company where books of account and other records are kept, based on data/details or financial
information provided to us through digital medium, owing to restricted movements and partial lockdown
imposed by the Governments to prevent the spread of COVID-19. Being constrained, we resorted to and
relied upon the results of the related alternate audit procedures to obtain appropriate audit evidence for
the significant matters in course of our audit. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8,

10.

11.

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
T:+ 91 22 61437333 E: info@kke.in W: www.kke.in

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 2, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

In terms of provisions of Section 143(5) of the Act, we give in Annexure 3 our report on the Directives by
the office of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (CAG).

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the applicable Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2021, taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure 4.
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. Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

g. Interms of provisions of Section 197 (16) of the Act, We report as under:

The Company being Government Company within the meaning of Section 2(45) of the Act on and from
September 28, 2018, as informed, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act, pertaining to managerial
remuneration, are not applicable to it from that date vide MCA Notification dated 5th June 2015.

h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 105146W/W100621 y

AN A VS ek
/?; -'.IJ‘;:;_- .fr 3 £0
Hasmukh B Dedhia LACC

Partner
Membership No: 033494

ICAI UDIN: 21033494AAAAER3988

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2021

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, india
T + 91 22 61437333 E: info@kkc.in W: www.kkc.in
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- Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Baroda Asset Management India
Limited (Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

(referred to in paragraph 5 titled “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements”)

As part of our audit in accordance with SAs we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, india
T+ 01 22 61437333 E: info@kke.in W: www.kke.in

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001, India
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. Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Baroda Asset Management India
Limited (Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

[referred to in paragraph 9 titled ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’]

.a)

b

—

c)

Vi.

vii.

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
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a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

Fixed assets have been physically verified during the year by the management in accordance with a regular
programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at
reasonable intervals. According to information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable properties; hence clause (3)(i)(c) of the Orderis not applicable
toit.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (3)(ii) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Therefore,
the requirement of clauses (3) (iii)(a), (3) (iii)(b) and (3) (iii)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or securities covered under section
185 and section 186 of the Act. In respect of investments made by the Company, in our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions
of Section 186 of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
during the year. Therefore, question of reporting compliance with directives issued by the Reserve Bank
of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed
thereunder does not arise. We are informed that no order relating to the Company has been passed by
the Company law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any
other Tribunal.

The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act
for any of the products / services of the Company. Accordingly, clause (3) (vi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

In respect of statutory dues:

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of records
of the Company, in respect of amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account, the Company has
been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income Tax, Goods & Service tax, Cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable to the
Company, during the year with the appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed statutory dues
payable in respect to above statues, outstanding as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

As informed, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax are not applicable
to the Company during the year under report.

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001, India
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Chartered Accountanis

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the

records of the company, there are no material dues of Income Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Value added
tax which have not been deposited on account of any disputes.

Based on our audit procedures and as per the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not taken any loans from financial institutions, banks and government or has not issued
any debentures. Hence clause (3) (viii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

During the year under report, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, clause (3) (ix) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company and according
to information and explanation given to us, we have neither noticed nor have been informed by the
management, any incidence of fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees.

The Company having become Government Company within the meaning of Section 2(45) of the Act on
and from September 28, 2018, as informed, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act, pertaining to
managerial remuneration, are not applicable to it from that date vide MCA Notification dated 5" June
2015.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (3) (xii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable, for all transactions with the related
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
Therefore, the provisions of clause (3) (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Therefore, the provisions of clause (3) (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No 105146W/W100621 /‘Nm
z{- = &

Hasmukh B Dedhia (ﬁt
Partner L
Membership No: 033494

ICAI UDIN: 21033494AAAAER3988

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2021

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Murnbai 400013, India
T+ 91 22 61437333 E: info@kke.in W: www.kke.in

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001, India
LLPIN-AAP-2267 7



. Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

Annexure 3 to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Baroda Asset Management India

Limited (Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

[Referred to in paragraph 10 under titled “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”]

Our report, based on our audit and as per information and explanations provided by the management of the
Company on ‘Directives’ issued by the by office of the CAG in terms of provisions of Section 143(5) of the Act

Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT system?
If yes, the implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the
accounts along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

The Company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions, namely “Sun Accounting
System”. In course of our audit, nothing came to our notice pertaining to accounting transactions being
processed outside IT system, having any financial implications.

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts /loans/interest
etc. made by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial
impact may be stated. Whether such cases are properly accounted for?

Not Applicable in case of the Company.
Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from central/ state government or its agencies
were properly accounted for/ utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Not Applicable in case of the Company.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Hasmukh B Dedhia =
Partner

Membership No: 033494

ICAl UDIN: 21033494AAAAER3988

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2021

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
T + 9122 61437333 E: info@kke.in W www.kke.in
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Chartered Accountants

Annexure 4 to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Baroda Asset Management India
Limited (Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

[Referred to in paragraph 11 (f) titled “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Baroda Asset Management India
Limited (“the Company”) as at March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Eiphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
T+ 91 22 61437333 E: info@kkc.in W: www.kkc.in
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Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 105146W/W100621

Hasmukh B Dedhia
Partner
Membership No: 033494

ICAI UDIN: 21033494AAAAER3988

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2021

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
T+ 91 22 61437333 E: info@kkc.in W: www.kke.in
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Baroda Asset Management India Limited

(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

Balance sheet
as at 31 March 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees)

Particulars Note No 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Funds
(a) Share Caputal 3 949,440,640 949 440,040
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 (278,148,051) (295.789,198)
Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Other long term liabilities 3 13,536,609 12,834 807
(b) Long term provisions 1] 27,808,122 33079158
Current Liabilities
(a) Trade payables 7
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 3.920 i
small enterprises ’
{3) total outst_amling dues ofcrediu_ars other than 12,157,642 12031954
micro enterprises and small enterprises
(b) Other current liabilities & 56,868,898 58,334,636
(¢) Short-term provisions Y 2,246,844 5,790,220
Total 783,914,624 775,828,277 |
1. ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1
(i) Tangible asscts 2,783,356 ST AT
(ii) Intangible assets 1,283,949 S 370,485
(iii) Capital work-in-progress -
{(b) Non-current investments I 88.562,537 78.563.037
(¢) Long term loans and advances 2 22,327,628 65,737.584
Current assets
(a) Current investments 13 612,787,124 558,315,898
(b) Trade receivables 14 32,701,498 57351780
(¢) Cash and cash equivalent 15 19,068,788 1.010,571
() Short-term loans and advances 16 4,399,744 3.761.799 |
Total 783.914,624 TI5.828.277

See accompanying notes to the finaneial statements.

In terms of our report attached.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 105146 W/W 100621

Hasmukh B. Dedhia
Membership No: 033494

Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Baroda Asset Management India Limited
(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Conipany Linted)

Vikramadi?ya Singh Khichi
Director
DIN - 08317894

Anthony Heredia
Whole-time Director &
Chiefl Executive Officer
DIN - 02205628

bron bn —
Kiran Deshpande
Chiel Operating OGificer &
Chicel Financial Officer

Pooja Bagadia
Company Sceretary

Mumbai
26-Apr-202]



Baroda Asset Management India Limited

(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

Statement of profit and loss
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees)

Particulars Note No 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Revenue from operations 17 405,385,568 419,859,981
Other income 18 27,610,278 17,696,973
Total Revenue 432,995,846 437,556,954
Expenditure
Employee benefit expenses 19 224,656,405 228,242,668
Depreciation and amortisation expense 10 7,467,897 7.285,344
Other Expenses 20 180,884,605 187,513,668
Total Expenses 413,008,907 423,041,680
Profit before tax 19,986,939 14,515,274
Provision for taxation
- Current year Income tax
[Net of MAT Credit utilised Rs 8,31.602 (Previous Year- Nil)] 4,668:000 6:800.000
- Earlier year Income tax adjustment
[MAT Credit Utilised Rs 23,22.208 (Previous Year - Rs Nil)] (2.922,208) Sk
Profit for the year 17,641,147 8.490,079
Earning per equity share ( Face value Rs. 10) 223
Basic and Diluted 0.19 0.09

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached.

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 105146 W/W 100621

T she ol

Hasmukh B. Dedhia
Membership No: 033494

Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Baroda Asset Management India Limited
(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

0 €D
Anthony Heredia

Vikramaditya Singh Khichi
Whole-time Director & Director
Chief Executive Officer DIN - 08317894
DIN - 02205628

b B i s 1”
Kiran Deshpande Pooja Bagdia
Chief Operating Officer & Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai
26-Apr-2021




Baroda Asset Management India Limited

{Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Assel Management Company Limited}

Cash Flow Statement for year ended 31st March, 2021

March 2021 March 2020
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net Profit before taxation : 19.986.39 14,515,274
Adjustments for
Depreciation 7,467,897 728534
Fixed Assets Write off - {
Profit on sale of investments (23,511,002) (17,201,794}
Diminution in the value of investment’ - 1,073,359
Interest on Bank Deposits - (480.524)
Operating Profit / (Loss) before working capital Changes : 3,943,834 5,185,659
Decrease / (Increase) in Current Assels and Non-Current
Assels 24,012,343 (25.727,462)
Increase / (Decrease) in Current and Non-Current Liabilities (9,554,800} 3,006,997
Cash used in / generated from Operations 18,401,377 (16,934,800)
Refund / (Payout) of Taxes 41,064,164 (23048, T86)
Cash used in/ gencrated from Operating Activities 59,465,541 {39,983,5392)
Cash used in / generated from Investing activities
Interest on Bank Deposits 3,401,395

Purchase of Investments

(4.427.759.724)

(3.502,500.000)

Proceeds from Sale of Investments 4,386,800,000 3.494,585.896
Purchase of Fixed Asscts (447,600) (5.004.324)
Net cash used in / generated from Investing activities (41,407,324) (9,517,032)
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

18,058,217 (49.500,625)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year as per
note 15 1,010,571 SOLA Y
Cash and Cash cquivalents af the end of the year as per o
note 15 19,068,788 1,010,571
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand 103,427 105,927
Balance with banks 18,965,361 HU4.644
Cheques in hand - Lo.000
Short term bank depusils - -
Total Cash & Cash Equivalent as per note 15 19,068,788 LO105T1

In terms of our report attached.

For and on behall of the Board ol irectors
Baroda Asset Management India Limited
(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset \lanagement Company Linuted}

For Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 105146 W/W 100621

Antholfy Heredia Vikramaditya Singh Khichi
Whole-time Director & Direcior
Chief Executive Officer DIN - 08317894

DIN - 02205628 ) C&OQ
Lo Q/vx —A J ‘%Qixp A
Pouja Bagadia

Kiran Deshpande
Chief Operating Officer & Company Seeretary

Chief Financial Officer

Hasmukh B. Dedhia
Membership No: 033494

Mumilbxit
2a-Apr-2021

Mumbal
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¢




Baroda Asset Management India Limited
(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees)

2.1

Background

Baroda Asset Management India Limited (the ‘AMC’) was incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 on 5 November 1992 as a public limited company. The AMC’s
registered office is situated at 501, Titanium, 5th Floor, Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (E), Mumbai - 400 063.

The Company’s Principal activity is to act as investment manager to ‘Baroda Mutual Fund’
(the Fund). The company is registered with Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
under the SEBI (Mutual Fund) Regulations, 1996 (the “SEBI” regulation).

On June 27, 2008, Pioncer Global Asset Management S.p.A (PGAM) acquired a 51%
sharcholding in the AMC. Subsequently, the name of the AMC was changed to Baroda
Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited and a fresh certificate of incorporation was
issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra, on July 8, 2008. Post the
acquisition, the Company became a subsidiary of PGAM. Effective November 1. 2017,
PGAM has been merged into its controlling company, UniCredit S.p.A. (UniCredit) As a
consequence, the shareholding of PGAM in the Company stood transferred to UniCredit
S.p.A

On September 28, 2018, the entire sharcholding of UniCredit (carlier PGAM which got
merged into UniCredit effective November 1, 201 7) in the Company was transferred to Bank
of Baroda (BOB) and the name of the AMC was changed to “Baroda Asset Management
India Limited” and a fresh certificate of incorporation dated November 3, 2018 was issucd
to the AMC. Accordingly, the Company became wholly owned subsidiary of BOB.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, amended and the relevant provisions ol the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act"). The financial statements have been prepared on
acerual basis under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the previous
yer.

The Company was a Small and Medium Sized Company till September 2018 as defined in
the General Instructions in respect of Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2000,
amended and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") but alter
acquisition of shares by BOB company ceased to be a SMC.




Baroda Asset Management India Limited
(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees)

2.

2.2

2.3

2.4

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand
deposits and short term deposits with banks with original maturitics of three months or
less from the date of acquisition and other short-term highly liquid investments that arc
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk
of changes in value.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts ol
assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenscs
during the year. The Management believes that the estimates used in preparation ol the
financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these
estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in
the periods in which the results are known { materialise.

Property, Plant and Equipment

a)  Tangible fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation
and impairment. Cost includes freight, dutics, taxes and incidental expenses related to
the acquisition and installation of the assets.

b) Intangible assets comprising of computer software are stated at cost of acquisition,
including any cost attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition, less
accumulated amortisation. Any technology support cost or annual maintenance cost
of such software is charged annually to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢)  Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for
\cost, less its estimated residual value.

d)  The Company provides pro-rata depreciation under straight line method from the date
the asset is put to use and for any asset sold, until the last date of sale.

¢)  Depreciation is calculated considering the useful life of asset as per schedule 11 of the
Companices Act 2013 or any shorter useful life as estimated by the management in the
table given below.

Class of asset Rate of depreciation Useful life
Furniture and lixtures 20% S years
Office equipment 20% 5 years
Computers  including  33.33% 3 years
compuler soltware

Leasehold Over the period of lease or uselul life, whichever
improvements is shorter
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

f)  Fixed assets individually costing Rs.5,000 or less are fully depreciated in the ycar of
purchase / acquisition.

g)  The Computers and Computer Software are depreciated / amortised on straight linc
basis over the useful life and leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period
of lease or useful life, whichever is shorter.

Revenue Recognition

Investment management fees

Investment management fees are recognised net of GST on an accrual basis as a percentage
of the average daily net assets of the schemes of Baroda Mutual Fund (excluding on
investments made by the Company in the schemes, intra-scheme investments and schemes
investment in fixed deposits), such that it does not exceed the expense limit prescribed by
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (*SEBI") (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 and
any further amendments (the ‘Regulations’) or offer document of the respective schemes.

QOther income

Interest income is accounted on accrual basis.

Purchase and sale of investments is recorded on the trade date. The profit / loss on sale of
investments is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss on the trade date. Profit or loss
on sale of investments is determined using weighted average cost method.

Scheme related expenses

Annual recurring expenses relating to schemes of the Fund which are in excess of TER
accruals in the schemes, are borne by the Company.

Expenscs incurred directly by the Company for schemes are recognised in statement of Profit
and Loss under respective heads.

As per AMFI circular No. 71/2017-18 dated March 23, 2018, interest cost on borrowing to
the extent of portfolio yield for the day should be borne by the borrowing scheme and the
excess interest cost shall be borne by AMC.

Tavestments

Investments are classified as Current or Non-current based on intention of the management
at the time of purchase.

Long term investments are carried at carrying cost less diminution in value other than
temporary in nature, determined separately for each individual investment.

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and market value. Any reduction in the
carrying amount and any reversals of such reductions are charged or credited to the
Statement of profit and loss. The comparison of cost and market value is done separately for
cach individual investment.

The cost of Investment includes purchase price, directly attributable acquisition charges and
reduced by recovery of cost, if any.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Earning per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could oceur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the period/year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity sharcs and
dilutive potential equity shares outstanding at the year end.

Employee benefits

Change in Leave encashment Policy :

During the year leave encashment policy was changed by the Company. Consequent 10
changes in the policy, the accumulated compensated balances as of 31.12.2019 were paid to
the employees during the year as encashment.

Employee benefits include provident fund, gratuity fund, and compensated absences.

Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution to provident fund is considered as defined contribution plan and
is charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when
services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans in the form of gratuity fund the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried
out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they oceur. Past service cost is recognised immediately
to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. The retirement benefit
obligation recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, as reduced by the fair value of
scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost. plus
the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the schemes.

Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange
for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees
render the service. These benefits include compensated absences which are expected to oceur
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related
service.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:

(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that
increase their entitlement of future compensated absences; and

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur,

Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to oceur within twelve months after the end
of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability
valued by actuary at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet
date less the fair value of the plan assets, if any out of which the obligations are expected to
be settled.

Taxation
Taxes on income

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the ycar as determined
in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 190]
and other applicable tax laws.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future
cconomic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as
an asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income lax.
Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable
that future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences, being the differences between the taxable
income and the accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal
in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilitics are
recognised for all timing differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for timing
differences of items other than unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward losses only to the
extent that reasonable certainty exists that sufficient future taxable income will be available
against which these can be realised. However, if there are unabsorbed depreciation and carry
forward of losses and items relating to capital losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only
if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that there will be sufficient
future taxable income available to realise the assets. Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are
offset if such items relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing tax laws and the
Company has a legally enforceable right for such set off. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
cach balance sheet date for their realisability.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Transactions in foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of
the transactions. Exchange difference, if any, arising out of foreign exchange transactions
scttled during the year are recognised as income or expense in the Statement of profit and
loss.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date
are translated at the closing exchange rate on that date. The exchange differences, if any, arc
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result ol past
cvents and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement
benefits) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on the best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed al
ecach balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed in the Notes,

Contingent Assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent asscls
are assessed continually and if it virtually certain that an economic benefit will arise to the
asset and recognized in the period in which the change occur.

Goods and Service Tax Input Credit
Goods and Service Tax input credit is accounted for in the books in the period in which the

underlying service received is accounted and when there is no uncertainty in availing /
utilising the credits.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between
acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has
determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and
liabilities as current and non-current.

Operating lease

Lease expenses on operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight line basis over the lease term. Initial direct costs are recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an
impairment loss and is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet
date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject
to a maximum of depreciable historical cost.

The recoverable amount is greater of net selling price and their value in use. Value in use is
arrived at by discounting the future cash flow to their present value based on an appropriate
discounting factor.
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3 Share capital

Authorised

100,000,000 (Previous year : 100,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/~

Issued, subseribed and paid-up

94,944,064 (Previous year : 94.944,064) cquity shares of Rs. 10/- cach

fully paid up

As at
31 March 2021

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

949,440,640
949,440,640

Asal
31 March 2020

1,000,000,000
1,000,000,000

—_—e

949,440,040
944 440,640

—_—

3.1 Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period:

Name of Share Hulders As at 31 March, 2021 As ut 31 March, 2020
No. of Shares Amount Nuo. of Shares Amount
Cuistanding at the beginning of the year 94,944,004 | 949,440,640 94,944,064 | 949440040
No. of Shares alloted during the year
CQutstanding at the end of the yeur 94,944,064 | 949,440,640 94,944 064 | 949,440,640
3.2 The details of Sharchelder's hulding more than 5% of Equity Shares is set out below:
Name of Share Holders As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020
No. of Shares Yy held Mo, of Shares % held
Bank of Barods and its nominees 94,944,004 100% 94,944,004 Ly
Total 94,944,004 94 944 064
3.3 Detail of shares held by holding company.

Name of Share 1olders

As at 31 March, 2021

Asat3l M

arch, 2020

No. of Shares

%% held

Nuo. of Shares

% held

Bank of Barota and its nominees

94,944,064

100%

94,944,064

(LS

[Totul

94,944,064

94,944.064

3.4 Rights, Preference, Restriction attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one cluss of shures referred 1o as equity shares having Fuce
to one vote per share, The holders of equity shares are entitled to dividend, if any,
Sharcholders at the Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Compaiy, the hol
any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all pre
currently. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of cquity share

- During the period of 5 years immediately preceding the Bulance Sheet date, the Company

2 being received in cush, bonus shares and has not bought back any cquity shares.

s held by the sharcholders.

Valie of Rs. 10 cach. Each holder of cquity share 1s entited
propused by the Board of Directors and approved by
ders of cquity shares will be entitled o rooeive
ferentinl amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist

has not issucd any equity shares without payment
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As at
31 March 2021
4 Reserves and surplus

Balanee in the statement of Scourities Premium Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 396,100,239
Add : Transfer from other reserves -
Less : Transfer to uther reserves .
Balance at the vnd of the yeur 396,166,239

Balance in the statement of Profit and Loss

Balance at the beginning of the year (691,955,437)
Profit /{Loss) for the year 17,641,147
Balance at the end of the year (674,314,290)

i278,148.051)

5 Other long term liabilities.

Bonuy paysble 13,536,609

13,536,609
6 Long term provisions

Provision for Employee Benefits
Gratuity { Refer note 19.2} 23,744,335
Compensated Absenves 4,063,787

27,808,122

T Trade pavables

Total vutstanding dues of micru enterprises and small enterprises (Refer
Note 7.1)

Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 12,157,642
small enterprises

3,920

12,161,562

Note 7.1

(a) There is no amount of Interest payable ws 16 of MSME Act, 2006 and there is nu vverdue of

supplicr covered under MSME Act

As
31 March 2020

396,166,239

390,166,239

(700.445,516)
8,490,079
(691,955.437)

(295.789,198)

12,834,867
12,834,867

21,900,574
11,278,584
33.179.158

12,031,954

principal & interest to the

(b) The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been wlentified on the basis of information

available with the company and the same has been relicd upon by the auditors.

8  Other current liabilities

Statutory dues [Net of GST nput eredit Rs 92,92.960 (P.Y. Rs,

§ 13,236,879
8,605,013}
Bunus payable 42,375,041
Other payable 1,256,978
56,808,898
9 Short-term provisions

Provision for Employee Benelits
Gratuity ( Refer note 19.2) 1,675,054
Compensaled Absences 71,790

Provision for Tax [net of advance tax Nit(P.Y.Rs Nib] -

2,246,844

10,857 857
46,261,779
1,215,000

58,334,630

3,391,185
2,405,035

5,796,220

[E— At T
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{Curreney: Indian rupees)

As b Asal
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Non-current investments (at cost)
Mutual Fund wits | Unguoied. Trinde)
330,000 000 { Previvus year 33000 ) Unies of Barsda Credit 3
3.3 1 F A
Risk Fund- Plan B Growth of Ry 10 cach ADIH 3002000
864,534.919  Previous yeur: N64.534.919) Units of Barods Dynamic
2.5 2.5
Boml Fusd - Plan B Growtl of Rs. 10 cach AT {12,598
175,619.652 { Previows ¥ 175,619 652) Units of Baroda Gilt Fund-
3,965 1963,
Plan B Growth ol Rs. 1 each Foa e
3,122,760 Previous year: 3, 1227600 Unins of Baroda Liguid Fund- . " -
! ! 5000,
Plan B Growth of Rs. 1000 cach 0000 et
B 440841 [ Provious < 3,446,941 Units af Baroda 2
5 5
Comservative Hybrid Fusid - Flan B Growth of s 10 each #3000 el
144,357,404 { Previows vear: 144.357.404) Unuts of Baroda Short
s 2110 2119,
Tom Bond Fumsd- Plan B Growth of Rs. [0 each 110000 L
30317100 Provivns veur 3,130 7103 Units of Bareda Treasury
% 3,926, 5000,
Advantage Fund- Plas 1§ Growih of Rs. 1,000 each bl 000000
Less Diminution in the vilie of investment (1,473,359}
3926641 3,920,641
64,135.454( Previows year: 04,1 35454} Units of Baroda Mulli Cap 5 %
i . RRVUERHE
Fand - Plan B Growil of Bs. 10 each AA000) ]
593,802, 395( Previvis year: 593,502.395) Units ol Baroda Mid-Cap
Fud - Plan B Growth of Rs. 10 each a0, SN
196,529 065 Previous vear. 196,529.065) Unils of Biroda Lurge Cap
% 4 2 332K 23328
Fund- Plan B Growth of Rs, 10 cach AR W
220,27 1941 Provious year: 2200271 94 1) Units of Barodis Banking
3,564, F.304,
Al Fimangial Services Fumd - Plao B Growth of Rs. 10 cach o A0y
47,697 9741 Previous vear 47.697 9741 Units of Barods Hybrid -

i " : = 2.072, T072.000
Equity Fud - Plan B Girowth of Rs. [0 vach g0 o
74,602 74T Provivus year: 74,002,747 Units of Bansla ELSS Yo - 2970000 2770000
Plan B Growth of Rs. 10 gach ke =it
5000 { Previous year S000) U of Baroda Ul Short Duration

S S.000.000 S0 i
Fund - Phan B Growaly ol Bs 1000 cach il HORED
SO0 { Previvus year SO000U) Units of Baroda Dymamic Equiy £
Fuawl - Direel Growih af s, 10 cach AR 2N
5,000 Previous year: 30001 Units of Biwoda Overnight Fund -

. o 5000 N ERLEIREEE
Diveet Growth ol Bs. TR cach o :
50 Previows year: 30000 Units ol Barods Money Market Fund -

HIEERH 000,

hreet Plus Growlh of Rs 1000 gach aupR0 000,000
00,000 { Previows yews SO0.0007 Unis ol Baroda Equity Suving " .

: ERUUIRE AMHEAHRY
Fuid - Direet Flan Growth ol Rs 10 caclh L0000 500,001
FAIETLOC Provious voar 3030710 Units of Bansds Treasury
Addvantage Fussd- Pl 1 Growtol s 1000 euch (Sepregated
Portloliv) {Reter Mow 1123
3000000 | Previos ye L0000 000 Lnits of Bavoda Credin
Risk Fusd- Plan 13 Giowth ol s, 10 each {Segregated Portlolio) - -
{Refer Note 11.2}
495975001 ( Previows year Nilp Units of Baroda Large and Mini Cap 4.099.750
Fund- Dircet Plas Growth of Rs. 10 el o
49597500 { Previvws year: Nily Units of Barodis Banking and PSU 4999750
Tond Fund- Direel Plan Growalof Rs 10 each B

B8, 502,537 74,503 037
The apsereate book value el ket vale ol investments 15 as
Unguoted investoments in Muatual Fuids
- Apgrepale book value 38,562,537 T8563,037 'j
- Aperepate morket vidue 122,710,154 ¥9.091.324 Jb j
J o/
Market value et avestments manguoted Mutual Funds represents Net Asset Value (NAV) of units isswed by the Mulwb Mu‘;\{y
2 /
j=)

The company las seed capital investnrent in Mutual fund schemes of Barada Mutual Fumd as per Regulation 2805) of SEBI (Mutual Fund)
Regulatiuns, | 990

The Mutusal Fundd hiad enabled Segregation of Portfolio i some of s schemes during thie year., duly DHowing e process is stipulated in
SEBI vircular no, SEBVHOAMIDVDFZCIUP 2018/ 100 dated 28.12. 2018, The Mutual Fund segregated porlfoliv in twe sehemes - Baoda
Credit Risk Fund & Harmda Treasury Advantage Fund, is one of the Boldings in the portfolio of te said schemes w ked down to Z2i0
cunseguent o rating action on the instanent. All te anithulders i the seheme were sblotted wats equal to ther oiding, conmsequent to such
segregition, with the value of units being zero The Compuny, s an mvestor in he scheme wis alsy allotted wnits undes the segregated
portfotio. The segregated wits were alloted un A5/ 2U20. Therefure, apart frons heldeg usits ongimally alloned. Cumpany also hilds
units uler the sepregited poctllic as of March 31, 2020
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12 Long term loans and advances
{Unsecured, Considered good)
Security Depuosits
Advance tax [net of provisions Rs 20,457,800 (P.Y Rs.15,789,800}]
{Includes MAT credit entitlement Rs 3.153.810(Previous Year-Nil}j

13  Current investients
Mutual Fund units (Unquoted, Non trade)

270,810.748 (Previous year: 257,638,707} units of Baroda Liquid Fund
Growth -Plan B of Rs. 1,000 each

The aggregate book value and market value of investments is as follows.

Unquoted investments in Mutual Funds
- Aggregate book value
- Aggregate market value

As at
31 March 2021

16,082,949
6,244,679

22,327,628

612,787,124
612,787,124

612,787,124
641,627,843

As atl
31 March 2020

16,082,944
49,654,635

65,737,584

—_—

558,315,898

558,315,898

558,315,898
589,804,434

13,1 Market value of investments in unquoted Mutual Funds represents Net Asset Value (NAV) of units issued by the Mutual Fund.
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14  Trade receivables

(Unsecured, considered good, vutstanding for the period less than six
months from the date they were due for payment}

Management fees receivable

15  Cash and cash equivalents

A- Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

Balance with banks (Reler note 22.1)
Cheques in hand

16  Short-term loans and advances
Advanees W vendors
Prepaid expenses

As at
31 March 2021

32,701,498

32,701,498

103,427
18,965,361

19,068,788 _

125,730
4,274,014

4,399,744

As at
31 March 2020

57,351,786

57.351.786

1054927

894,644

10,000
—__Low0si

177,004
3.584.795

3,761,799

A A A
—_——t
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{Currency: Indian rupees)

Current Year Previous Year
17  Revenue from operations
Munagement fee 405,385,568 419,859,981
405,385_,563 419,859,951
18  Other income
Interest on Bank deposits (Refer note 22.1) 486,524
Profit on sale of current investment 23,511,003 17,201,794
Interest vn income tax refund 4,099,275 -
Exchange gain - w2
Other Non operating lncone 8,563

17,696.973

27,610,278

19  Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, bonus and allowinees 207,048,182 206,209,635
Contribution to provident fund 11,203,577 10,655.524
Stalf welfare 5,343,416 4,857,553
Gratuity expense 1,061,230 6,459,950

228,242,068

224,656,405

The following disclusures have been set out in accordance with the requirement of Accounting Standard 15 on "Employee
Benefits” s specificd under Seetion 133 of the Companies Act. 2013, read with Companics (Accounting Standards) Rules
2000, amended,

19.1  Defined Contribution Plan - Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund and National Pension Scheme

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Luss, which are 1ncluded under Contributions to Provident

fund,

Ay at Asal
Particulars 31 March 2021 21 Mareh 2020
Employer's contribution to Provident Fund, 10,755,360 10229226

192 Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity.
19.2.1  Reeenciliation of opening and closing balance of the present vatlue of defined benelit obligation for gratunty benefits is yiven beluw:

As at Asat
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 25,291,759 20,587,287
luterest Cosi 1,642,803 1,485,435
Past Service Cost (Vested Employees)
Past Service Cost (Un-vested Enployees)
Current Service Cost 2,809,139 2,662,400
Benefits Paid (933.600) (1,502,048}
Actuarial (Gain} / Loss on the Obligation (3.390.712) 2,058,685
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 25,419,389 25,291,759
19.2.2  Reconciliation of upening and closing Balance of Fair Value of Plan

Asat Asat
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the beginning - -
Acquisition Adjustient - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Employer's Contributions = -
Employee's Contributions - -
Benefits Paid - -
Actuarial Gain / (Loss) un the Plan Assels - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end - -

19.2.3  Reconciliativn of Fair Value of Assets and Obligations

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Present Value of Obligation 25419389 25,291,759

Fair Value of Plan Assets -
Unrecognized Past Service Cost -
Net Asset / (Liability) (25.419,389) (25,291,75Y9)
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(Formerly known as Baroda Pioncer Asset Management Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
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1924 Expense recopnized during the year (Under the head "Employee Benefits Expense”-Refer nutes o financial statements 20)

Particulars

Current Service Cost

Past Service Cost (Vested Employees)

Past Service Cost (Un-vested Employees)

Interest Cost

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Net Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognised in the period
Expenses Recognised in statement of Profit and Loss

19.2,5  Expericnce Adjustments

Particulars

(Gain) / Loss on Plan Liabilities
% of Opening Plan Liabilities
Gain / (Loss) on Plan Assets

% of Opening Plan Assets

19.3  Other Employce Benefits

Current Year
2,809,139

1,642,803

-3,390,712
1,061,230

For the period ending

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
188,874 179,278

0.90% 1.00%

Previous Youar
2662400
253,436

1,485,435

258,685
6,459,950

31-Mar-18 31-NMuar-17
335840 (1.0200
2.70% (.00%,

Provision toward Liability For Leave cncashment made on the basis of actuarial valuation as per Accounting Standards 15, Actuarial value of

liability is Rs. 4,635,577/~ (LY. Rs. 13,083,619/ based upon following assuniptions,

The assumptions of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senjority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment. Actuarial assumptions used are:-

Valuation method
Discount rate

Salary growth rate

MNormal retirement age
Attrition rate

Murtality rate

Discount Rate;

31 March 2021
Projected unit credit method
6.65%
9% for the first
year and 6%
thereafter
60 years
5.29%
Indian Assured
Lives Mortality
(2012-14) Ult
table

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indiun government securities as at the balunce sheet date for the

estimated term ol the ubligations.

Salary Escalation Rate

The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account

tictors.

the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant

31 March 2020
Projected wint eredit method

0.55%

LYy

) years
12.12%
Inelisn Assured
Lives Muortalily
{2012-140) Ul
tahle




Baroda Asset Management India Limited

(Formerly known as Buroda Pioncer Asset Management Company Limited}

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees)

Current Year Previous Year
20 Other expenses

Rent 22,585,985 22,220,649
Legal and professional fees 15,047,742 5,479,457
Qutsource scheme reluted expenses 5,651,949 4,778,390
Travelling and conveyance 2,650,390 6,945,439
Printing and stativnery 6.175.818 7,948,956
Contract stalf charges 70,080,591 72,481,443
Repairs and nuintenance - others 4,196,234 3,767,546
Communication 6,512,421 5,971,769
Electricity charges 3,162,313 4,240,070
Advertisement and publicity 2,607,200 2,113,080
Information technology 17,864,075 15401,101
Membership and registration fees {Refer note 22.1 (D) & 22.6) 7,316,403 6,032.597
Dircctor sitting fees 1,020,000 735,000
Marketing expenses 2,818,804 8,127,181
Insurance cXpenses 720904 630,442
Fund accounting expenses 3,922,186 5,336,029
Scheme related expenses 892,272 2,143,026
Postage, Freight, Couriers 873,815 2,430,422
SEBIL and other fees 1,820,284 3,794,281
Rates and taxes 180,853 9,500
Reeruitment and consultaney charges 380,590 772,701

Auditors Remuneration
Statutory sudit ltes 950,000 950,000
“Tax audit fees 400,000 400,000
-For reimbursenient of expenses 11,180 15,820
-Other services 150,000 187,680
Diminution in the value of investment - 1,073,359
Miscellangous expenses (Refer note 22.1(D) & 22.6) 2,292,536 3.515.724

180,884,605 187,513,608




Baroda Asset Management India Limited
(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Cuwrrency: Indian rupees)

21. Composite Scheme of Amalgamation

211 The Board of Directors of the Company on September 13, 2019 granted its ‘in principle’
approval to the Composite Scheme of Amalgamation (‘the Scheme’), which was also
assented to by the members of the Company on January 28, 2020 to give effect to the
agreements exceuted on October 11, 2019 between Bank of Baroda (‘BOB’) and BNP
Paribas Asset Management Asia Ltd (‘BNP Asia’) to merge their Asset Management
and Trustee Companies in India, thereby integrate their respective businesses. The
scheme was filed with National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’) on February 1.
2020 in terms of provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Act.

21.2 The scheme provides for the amalgamation of (1) the Company (‘the Transferor
Company 1') with BNP Paribas Asset Management India Private Limited (‘the
Transferee Company 1) and (ii) BNP Paribas Trustee India Private Limited (‘the
Transferor Company 2°) with Baroda Trustee India Private Limited (‘the Transferee
Company 2°) from the appointed date being Aprl 1, 2019, and shall be operative from
the effective date as defined in the Scheme.

213 Pursuant to the Scheme, the shares held by the shareholders of the Transferor Company
| shall stand cancelled and the Transferce Company 1 shall issue its shares to the
sharcholders of the Transferor Company 1. Upon such issue of shares and from the
Effective Date. the shareholders of the Transferor Company 1 and the sharcholders of
the transferee Company 1 will respectively hold 50.1% and 49.9% of the issued share
capital of the Transferee Company 1. The share entitlement ratio is 1.1391 (One Point
One Three Nine One) equity shares of INR 10/- each credited as fully paid up shares of
the Transferee Company 1 for every | (One) equity share of INR 10/- each fully paid-
up held by such equity shareholder in the Transferor Company 1.

214 The Transferor Company 1 and the Transferee Company I, with effect from the
Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date (i) : shall conduct their
respective business, in the Ordinary Course of Business and in accordance with
Applicable Law; (ii) from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company | shall carry on
and shall be entitled to carry on the business of the Transferor Company | and (iit) all
the profits or income accruing or arising to the Transferor Company 1, on or after the
Appointed Date but before the Effective Date, in respect of its business. or any
expenditure or losses incurred by the Transferor Company 1 in respect of its business.
shall for all purposes and intents be treated and be deemed to be the profits or incomes
or expenditure or losses (as the case may be) of the Transferee Company 1.

21.5 With effect from the opening of business hours of Appointed Date. and subject to the
provisions of the Scheme, the Transferor Company | shall stand amalgamated with the
Transferee Company | as a going concern and all assets, including know-how, patents.
copyrights, trade-marks, licences, franchises or any other business or commercial rights
of similar nature, being intangible assets, liabilities, contracts, arrangements,
Employees, Permits, licences, records, approvals, ete. of the Transferor Company I
shall. without any further act, instrument or deed, stand transferred to and vested in or
be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company [.s0as
to become. as and from the Appointed Date, the assets, liabilitics, contracts,
arrangements, employees, Permits, licences, records, approvals, ete. of the Transferce
Company | by virtue of, and in the manner provided in the Scheme.




. Baroda Asset Management India Limited
(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

Notes to the financial statement (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees)

21.  Composite Scheme of Amalgamation (Continued)

21.6 Approval from Hon’ble NCLT to the Scheme is received on March 2, 2021. Hon'ble
NCLT has sanctioned the scheme w.e.f. Appointed date of April 1, 2019. As per the
NCLT order, Petitioner Companies shall lodge certified copy of the order with
Registrar of Companies within 75 days of the receipt of last of the approvals — from
authorities i.e. FDI/ SEBI/ RBI

21.7 Status of Regulatory approvals
Given below is the status of various regulatory approvals in connection with the
Scheme:

» Approval from Competition Commission of India (CCI) was received on Dec 10,
2019.

> Approval from EU Commission was received in May 2020,

» FDI (Based on Press Note 3 issued by GOI) - Application submitted. NCLT order
submitted to DEA, Approval awaited.

» RBI - Application filed by Bank of Baroda. Approval awaited.

» SEBI - Final approval will be obtained from the Sectoral Regulator after receipt of

pending approvals as above.

21.8 For the year 2020-21, the financials of the Company have been prepared under the going
concern assumption. The closing date [date which is 5 (five) Business Days from the
satisfaction of the last of the Conditions Precedent set out in the Implementation
Agreement] for the merger transaction is expected to be in Financial Year 2021-22.
subject to receipt of all the required regulatory approvals. As such, the financial impact
of the Scheme would be given on such effective date as per the order of the NCLT
taking effect from the appointed date.
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22 Notes to accounts

22.1  Related party disclosures

(4) Names of related parties by whom control is exercised

Name of the related party Relationship
Bank of Baroda Holding company
Baroda Trustee India Private Limited Fellow subsidiary

(B)  Parties with significant influence

Name of the related party Relationship

Bank of Baroda 100 % shareholder in the Company ellective

from 28" September 2018

(C) Key management personnel

Mr. Anthony Heredia — CEO & Director
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22 Notes to accounts (Continued)

(D) Transactions with related parties

Particulars For the year  For the year
ended endeil
31/03/2021 31/03/2020

Income

1. Bank of Baroda
- Interest on Fixed deposits Nil 486.524

Expense

1. Bank of Baroda
- Royalty Fee 5,00,000 5.00,000
- Bank Charges 2,350 2,607

1-3

Key management persennel

Anthony Heredia
- Salary, bonus and allowances 24,415,303 23.718.512
- Perquisites 398,556 24.000

(E) Balances with reluted parties

As at As al
Particulars 31/03/2021 31032020
Assets
Bank of Baroda
- Bank balance* 1,85,09,565 HiH.803
“% previous year excludes Cheque in hand for Rs. 10.000/-.

(F)  There are no provisions for doubtful debt / advances or amounts written off or written back
for doubtful dues from / due to related partics

(G) Related parties are identified by Management and relied upon by Auditors
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22 Notes to accounts (Continued)

22,2 Deferred taxation

Particulars As at As at
31/03/2021 31/03/2020
Deferred tax assets
Provision for gratuity 7.071,674 7.036, 1067
Provision for leave encashment 1,289,618 3,806,783
Diminution in value of investments 298,608
Provision tor bonus 3,765,885 3,570,660
Total (A) 12,127,177 14,712,219
Deferred tax liability
Depreciation on fixed assets 658,456 {9.737)
Deferred tax assets (net) 12,785,633 14.?{}2._4_5}?_’: _.
Deferred tax assets recognised in the balance sheet Nil Nil

Company has earned profit during the year and has brought forward losses under taxation
laws which has been set off against the current year business profits. Deferred tax assets are
not recognised as there is no virtual certainty to continue to be in profits in the immediate
future and convincing evidence of realisation of such asset.

22.3  Earnings per share

In accordance with Accounting Standard 20 on Earnings Per Share, the computation of

earnings per share is set out below:

As at
31/03/2021 S1L32020
Earning per share
Net Prolit after tax attributable to equity sharcholders (A} - Rs. 17,641,147 $A90.079
Weighted average number of shares of face value Rs. 10 each (B) 94,944,004 94 944,064
Busic / Diluted Earning per share of tace value of Rs.10 for the year (A)/(B)- 0.19 009
Rs.

22.4  Unhedged foreign currency exposure

There is no unhedged foreign currency exposure as on 31 March 2021 (Previous year Nil)

22.5  Earnings in foreign exchange (on accrual basis)

There are no foreign exchange earnings during the current year. (Previous year Nil)

As ol
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22

22.6

22.7

22.8

22.9

22,10

Notes to accounts (Continued)

Expenditure in foreign exchange (on accrual basis)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31/03/2021 31/03/2020

Membership and registration fees (Subscription Charges) 1,91,525 38433
Miscellaneous expenses (Storage expenses}) Nil 244919
Total 191,525 283.352

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities

At the balance sheet date, the total outstanding commitments of capital expenditure amounts
to Rs.Nil (Previous year: Nil),

There are no pending litigations by and on the Company as on the balance sheet date.

Status of Income Tax Assessments

The intimations w/s 143(1) of Income Tax Act, 1961 were received by the Company for
Assessment Years 2019-20 and 2020-21. The disallowances made therein by the Assessing
Officer are/ being contested by the Company vide rectification application and/or appeals.
The company has been advised that there is reasonable certainty that tax liability will not
arise in future year.

Segment reporting

The main business of the Company is to manage schemes of Baroda Mutual Fund. All other
activities of the Company revolve around the main business and accordingly there are no
separate reportable segments, as per the Accounting Standards on Segment Reporting (AS-
17) prescribe under section 133 of the Companics Act, 2013.

Leases as Lessee
The company has entered into cancellable operating leases arrangements for offices. Lease
rentals paid for the same are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Lease expense tor the year 22,585,986 22.226.649

Minimum Lease Payments:

Not later than one year 11,397,835 17.958.000

Later than one year but not later than tive years 780,929 2411934

Later than five years - .
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23

Impact of COVID 19

As the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic continues after a year, the full fledge resumption
of activities from the Office is still little time away. After a sharp fall in March 2020, the
stock markets recovered sharply during the year. The AUM of the Industry continued to
grow (Rs. 32 lac cr now) while the Industry adapted to the new ways of working to ensure
lcast disruption to business as usual.

The Company continued to follow all protocols as laid down by the Central and State
Government for ensuing safety of its people and at the same time ensuring continuity of
business operations and delivery of services to its Distributors and Investors. New digital
tools were added for transaction convenience to the investors, apart from promoting the
existing digital modes. The Work from Home which started last year continues and the staff
attendance at office has been kept within the prescribed limits. Given that most of the work
was handled electronically, trail of transactions and records have been maintained.

As on the Balance Sheet date, there is no impact on the Company’s receivables and other
assets. Further, the company’s net worth is predominantly invested in liquid assets that arc
realizable at shorter notice, barring those that are mandatorily required to be held as seed
investments. The asset mix of the funds managed by Company improved during the year,
with share of equity AUM steadily rising. One Equity NFO was launched in Sept 2020 and
one fixed Income NFO was launched in Dec 2020 by Baroda MF. Further, two of the cquily
funds crossed the INR 1000 crore AUM mark during the year.

The Company will continue to monitor closely the general economic conditions and the
industry related issues in which it operates, to analyse the extent of changes that would be
caused to Company’s operations in near future. The company expects 1o post profit for this
year as well. Overall, going concern of the company remains unaffected.
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24 Prior year comparatives

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond
with the current year's classification / disclosure.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Baroda Asset Management India Limited
(Formerly known as Baroda Pioneer Asset Management Company Limited)

Anthonng:dia Vikramaditya Singh Khichi

Whole-time Director & Director
Chief Executive Officer DIN - 08317894
DIN - 02205628
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Kiran Deshpande Pooja Bag:tdia
Chief Operating Officer & Company Secretary
Chiel Financial Officer

Mumbi
26-April-2021




